Appendix C
 Michigan Historical Commission Meeting Minutes
November 14, 2019
Michigan History Center
Commission Room, 702 W. Kalamazoo Street, Lansing


Commissioners in attendance: Laura Ashlee, Joe Calvaruso (by phone), Timothy Chester (by phone), Brian James Egen, Delia Fernandez, Eric Hemenway (by phone), Thomas Truscott, and Larry Wagenaar.
Excused Absence: Susan Safford
Staff:  Sandra Clark, Michelle Davis, and Heather Lehman

President Egen called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m.  

Approval of Agenda:   Wagenaar moved to approve the agenda; the motion was seconded by Calvaruso and was unanimously adopted.

Approval of Meeting Minutes:   Chester moved to approve the September 19, 2019, meeting minutes; the motion was seconded by Ashlee and was unanimously adopted.  

Marker Project:
Clark stated she will have an update on the marker project at the next meeting.

Marker Program:
· Artifact Status:
· Policy - Wagenaar moved to approve the Artifact Status Policy; the motion was seconded by Calvaruso and was unanimously adopted.
· Request - The commission reviewed a request from the Jamestown Reformed Church, Local Site No. 1520, Ottawa County, to have their marker moved to artifact status.  After discussion, Fernandez moved to approve the request; Truscott seconded the motion and it unanimously passed.

· [bookmark: _Hlk25744086]Vandenberg Center Marker – On November 16, 2017, Michigan Historical Commission agreed to pay 50% of the cost to correct the spelling error on the Vandenberg Center historical marker.  MHC staff and commissioners have attempted to find a sponsor to cover the remaining 50% of the cost.  Since those attempts have resulted in no additional funds, Clark suggested that the commission discuss moving forward by covering 100% of the cost.  After discussion, Ashlee moved to use marker funds to cover the entire cost of having the Vandenberg Center marker corrected and to purchase two new post; Wagenaar seconded the motion and it was adopted unanimously.  

· Removal of Markers – In accordance with Public Act 10 of 1955, Section 366.190, the Center requested that the Commission recommend recalling the following markers and officially delisting the associated sites from the State Register of Historic Sites (Appendix A):


· Troy Corners, Troy, Oakland County, L71
· South Olive Christian Reformed Church, Holland, Ottawa County, L1177
· Harsen House, Harsens Island, St. Clair County, L511

Ashlee moved to recall the Troy Corners, South Olive Christian Reformed Church and the Harsen House markers and to have each site delisted from the State Register of Historic Sites; Calvaruso seconded the motion and it was adopted unanimously.
· Delisting of State Historic Sites – Clark presented five sites to be delisted from the State Register of Historic Sites.  Chester moved to approve delisting the sites from the State Register of Historic Sites as presented (Appendix B); Fernandez seconded the motion and it was adopted unanimously:
· St. Peter’s Episcopal Church, Tecumseh, Lenawee County, HB35
· Hill’s Store, Grand Marais, Alger County, L95
· Alger County Courthouse, Munising, Alger County, L490
· Mason’s Tavern, Grand Blanc, Genesee County, L1132
· Nazareth College, Kalamazoo, Kalamazoo County, S232

· Approval of Marker Applications - Written background information was provided on two new marker applications. (Appendix C)
· Burt Lake Village, Brutus, Emmet County
· Manistee Courthouse Fountain/Onekama Memorial Fountain, Onekama, Manistee County

[bookmark: _GoBack]Ashlee moved to approve the Burt Lake Village marker application; Truscott seconded the motion and it was unanimously adopted.  Wagenaar moved to approve the Manistee Courthouse Fountain/Onekama Memorial Fountain marker application; Fernandez seconded the motion and it was unanimously adopted.
· Approval of Marker Text – Three new marker texts were presented to the Commission for review and approval.
· Cadillac House, Lexington, Sanilac County
· Black Bottom, Detroit, Wayne County
· Plymouth Township, Plymouth, Wayne County

Truscott moved to approve the Cadillac House marker text as amended; the motion was seconded by Fernandez and was unanimously approved.  Wagenaar moved to approve the Black Bottom marker text; the motion was seconded by Ashlee and unanimously approved.  Truscott moved to approve the Plymouth Township marker text as amended; the motion was seconded by Wagenaar and was unanimously approved.
· Reports:
· The Marker Status report was distributed prior to the meeting. 
· The Marker Fund report was distributed prior to the meeting.

Awards Committee Report: Chester reported that the awards committee discussed several core questions regarding the various awards previously handled by the commission (Milliken/Adams/Kelley and Swainson) or the Michigan History Foundation (Odyssey for teachers):
Why is the commission doing these awards?
Is any other organization doing this and doing it better?
What is the commission trying to accomplish by having an awards program?
What’s the best way to go about instituting awards?  Call for nominations?
What should be the frequency and the alignment of the three awards?
What is the nature and the form of the awards?
What resources if any, staff, consultants and or cash, should be expended to administer these awards?

From those core questions, the committee determined several points to report to the commission:  The questions raised were valid but require additional research in order to be answered. 
The awards program needs to be formally evaluated in order to achieve clarification and structure.
The committee recommends that if the awards are put into play, then they should be benchmarked against existing statewide awards to determine their utility and to avoid duplication.
Who should undertake this project?

After discussion, the commission decided to take some time and internally tackle the various questions surrounding the awards program.  The committee will evaluate and research the program with the intention of having a final report to present at the commission meeting in June 2020.

Staff Reports:
· Admission Discussion – Clark provided background information for the commission’s annual review of the Michigan History Museum admission charges. The material included comparable data from Lansing area and regional Michigan museums, as well as state museums from the Great Lakes region. The data also included the potential income associated with various options.  Wagenaar moved that the commission recommend the option of increasing admissions by $2 across the board and that the recommendation be shared with legislative leadership as required by law.  Chester seconded the motion. Discussion confirmed that the additional funds will be used to enhance the education programs offered to school children. The recommended changes will take effect in September 2020.  There will continue to be no charge for children under five, and Sunday afternoons will continue to be free to all visitors. The motion was unanimously passed.
· Multicultural Advisory Committee – Clark presented ideas on creating a commission subcommittee that would seek advice and input from diverse experts and citizens on Michigan History Center programs. Commissioners expressed interest in the idea, noting that those involved would need to be compensated and asked Clark to seek information on such programs from peer institutions. 
· Director’s Report – Clark reported that Jillian Reese has joined the Center staff as the Curator of Exhibits.  Clark also reported that Heritage Michigan has changed its name back to the Michigan History Foundation and named Erin Burns as the new Executive Director.  
State Historic District Reports:
The commission was provided two reports by the State Historic Preservation Office:
· Blue Bird Inn Local Historic District, Detroit
· Royal Oak Farmer’s Market Local Historic District, Royal Oak

Chester moved to accept the reports; Ashlee seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

Business Updates – The commission discussed location possibilities for the 2020 commission meetings.  The commission agreed to hold the February and November meetings at the center, the June meeting will likely be held on Mackinac Island. April and September possibilities are for the Jim Crowe Museum in Big Rapids and the Historical Society of Michigan in Lansing.

Public Comment – There was no public comment.

Commissioner Comments
Fernandez attended her first marker dedication, the John Taylor Memorial Park.  

Wagenaar announced that the Historical Society of Michigan dedicated its new building on November 13, 2019.

Egen thanked all of the commissioners for their hard work and for working together in a collegial manner.

Ashlee moved to adjourn the meeting; the meeting adjourned at 12:36 p.m.


[image: ]
Sandra S. Clark, Executive Secretary
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Removal of Markers


In accordance with Public Act 10 of 1955, Section 366.190, the Center is requesting the Commission’s recommendation to recall the following markers and to have the sites officially delisted from the State Register of Historic Sites:

Troy Corners
Site No. L71
Registered 1968, Marker Erected 1968
Troy, Oakland County

Marker Text:  The city of Troy was an unclaimed wilderness when Johnson Niles moved here with his family from New York in 1821. As a farmer, carpenter, innkeeper, and merchant, Niles did much to develop the area, offering advice and encouragement to the settlers who followed. By 1834 the township included over eleven hundred inhabitants and the thriving village of Troy Corners had grown out of Niles’s original settlement. Niles became Troy’s postmaster and supervisor, and served in the Michigan legislature as a representative and later as a senator. His original home, a log cabin, was replaced by this house, built a few years after Niles arrived.

In 2011, the Center was contacted by a concerned citizen who stopped to read the Troy Corners historical marker.  She was surprised to see the marker still standing since a house no longer existed on the property.  File notes state that the Center had contact with the Troy Historical Society and learned that the Johnson Niles house had been moved to the Troy Historic Village, located two miles south of Troy Corners.  The Troy Historical Society asked about relocating the marker to the Troy Historic Village and it was explained to them that was not an option and the marker needed to be returned to the Center.  

In looking back at the Michigan Historical Commission meeting minutes, I was unable to find a formal request to have the marker removed and returned to the Center or to have it delisted from the State Register of Historic Sites.  


South Olive Christian Reformed Church
Site No. L1177
Registered 1984, Marker Erected 1985
Holland, Ottawa County

Marker Text:
Side One - The South Olive Christian Reformed Church is a daughter congregation of the Noordeloos church. The Noordeloos church and three other local West Michigan congregations seceded from the Reformed Church in America in 1857 to form the Christian Reformed Church. In 1885 members of the Noordeloos church received permission to organize this church in the southern part of Olive Township. It was originally called the Holland Christian Reformed Church at New Holland.

Side Two - Completed in 1887, this church is the nucleus of this Dutch-Calvinist farming community. A. J. Baker of Hamilton, Michigan, was the contractor for the original forty-by-fifty-foot frame building. The structure was enlarged in 1897. The chapel, built in 1898, was moved and attached to the rear of the church in 1935. The full basement was completed in 1948. The simple design is accented with Gothic windows. The front tower, with its open belfry, houses a 1,033-pound bell cast in 1897.

In 2015, the SHPO notified the Center that the original structure located at 6230 120th Avenue in Holland was demolished.  A new church was built at 6425 120th Avenue in Holland at some point.  As of September 2012, Google Maps shows a new structure for the South Olive Christian Church was built at 6230 120th Avenue.  The search did not reveal a historical marker at either site. 
 
Harsen House
Site No. L511
Registered 1977, Marker Erected 1977
Harsens Island, St. Clair County

The center received a few phone calls regarding the Harsen House.  One of the callers stated she was the realtor representing an interested buyer of the house.  The realtor explained that the house is in desperate need of repair and it is important for the buyer to know what steps are required by law to keep this site listed on the State Register of Historic Sites and to keep the historical marker that is currently located on the property.  A google search of the Harsen House brought me to the realtor’s website and to the photos below.  It appears the Harsen House has a newly remodeled exterior:  

[image: ][image: ]

The Michigan History Center consulted with the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) asking their opinion on whether or not the alterations have impacted the historic integrity of the structure. The center received the following recommendation:

The recent work carried out at the property is not consistent with the guidelines contained in the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.  Because of the significant impact the recent work appears to have had on the property, we would recommend removing the marker from the site.  The house no longer conveys a sense of its time, place and use historically.  

The SHPO also provided the Center with the following newspaper article from 1970:[image: ]

Appendix A
		
	




Delisting Items from the State Register of Historic Sites

The Michigan Historical Commission is charged with maintaining the State Register of Historic Sites.  When a historic building is destroyed or so altered as to remove its historic significance, we require, by law, that the marker be removed.  In most cases the State Register listing should also be removed at that time.  At this time, we propose that the following sites be delisted from the State Register of Historic Sites.

	Site No.
	Date Listed
	Name 
	Location 
	Reason for Delisting

	HB35
	1958
	St. Peter’s Episcopal Church
	Tecumseh,
Lenawee County
	Structure demolished in 1963 (no marker)

	L95
	1971
	Hill’s Store
	Grand Marais,
Alger County
	Structure demolished in 1973 (no marker)

	L490
	1976
	Alger County Courthouse
	Munising,
Alger County
	Structure was destroyed in a fire in November 1978. (no marker)

	L1132
	1983
	Mason’s Tavern
	7500 Fenton Road, Grand Blanc,
Genesee County
	Structure moved in 2001; marker text no longer accurate; marker salvaged 10/2019

	S232
	1962
	Nazareth College
	Kalamazoo,
Kalamazoo County
	Structure demolished 
(no marker)
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Michigan Historical Marker Application Synopses 
Michigan Historical Commission 
November 14, 2019


Burt Lake Village 
Applicant: Knute Nadelhoffer
Marker Location: Chaboiganing Nature Preserve, Brutus Rd. Brutus, Emmet County. 
Requested Marker Type: Large, two-post, the same content on each side in different languages.  

The Cheboiganing Band of Ottawa and Chippewa Native Americans was the first documented group to permanently reside near Burt Lake in the northern region of Michigan’s lower peninsula. Archaeological evidence suggests agricultural communities lived at Indian Point on Burt Lake as early as 1300 CE. By 1855 the village there contained at least twenty log cabins, a Catholic church and 350 acres of land under cultivation. The 1836 Treaty of Washington and the 1855 Treaty of Detroit allowed tribal groups in northern Michigan to remain on their land, so Cheboiganing families lived in Burt Lake Village throughout the nineteenth century.

Chief Joseph Kie-She-go-we purchased the village land from the United States government in the 1840s, and the land was placed in trust to the Governor of Michigan. Taking advantage of a controversy as to whether the land was eligible for taxation, Cheboygan banker and real estate broker John McGinn purchased the land and got legal permission to evict the villagers. Some of the villagers took note of this and evacuated in the spring of 1900, but many of them returned to their homes by autumn. On October 15, 1900, Cheboygan County Sheriff Frederick Ming and his deputies forced the villagers from their homes as McGinn set fire to the buildings. McGinn spared only the church. About seventy-seven residents lost their homes. Some camped at property on the nearby Indian Road until they could build there, while others may have sought refuge at Cross Village, Harbor Springs or Middle Village. 

In 1903 Michigan passed a joint resolution awarding 400 acres of land in Cheboygan County to the Cheboiganing Band, but the land was never identified and this promise was never honored. Since the burn-out, the Cheboiganing Band (now called the Burt Lake Band) has engaged in political and legal action to regain their land. Michigan recognized the Burt Lake Band as a legal political unit in 1985, and the band hopes to achieve federal recognition. 

In 1987 the University of Michigan acquired land near the site of Burt Lake Village as part of its 290-acre Colonial Point Memorial Forest (now called Indian Point Memorial Forest). This purchase saved the area from logging. The Little Traverse Conservancy acquired 194 acres immediately west of the memorial forest in 1993, which was designated the Chaboiganing Nature Preserve. Much of the Burt Lake Village site now lies within this preserve. 

The sponsor has proposed a marker that contains the same content on each side, written in English on one side and Anishinaabemowin on the other.

Recommend Approval.  



Manistee Courthouse Fountain/Onekama Memorial Fountain
Applicant: Shirley Brooks
Marker Location: Onekama Village Park, Main Street. Onekama, Manistee County. 
Requested Marker Type: Small, different text on each side. 

In the spring of 1887, Manistee County supervisors voted to install two cast iron fountains in front of the 1878 county courthouse in the city of Manistee. They chose fountains designed by Jonathan Moore and William Wilkinson of New York. The fountains cost around $500 each and were installed during the summer of 1887. The Voice of the People Manistee newspaper deemed the fountains “a great blessing.” 
After a fire destroyed the Manistee County courthouse in February 1950, the Portage Lake Garden Club acquired one of the 1887 fountains. It was installed in the Onekama Village Park and dedicated in memory of the area’s veterans during the summer of 1951. 
In July 1973, the lead merman at the top of the fountain disappeared. Onekama’s sheriff found the statue on his doorstep in February 1974, accompanied by a typewritten note: “Sorry, this is the only way we knew to return it. Thank you.” The fountain was listed on the State Register of Historic Sites in 1986 and on the National Register of Historic Places in 1988. 

Recommend Approval
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